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ASCEND LEARNING TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors’ report of the Charltable
Company for the year ended 31 August 2025.

The annual report serves the purpose of both a Trustees' report, and a Directors' repart under company law.

The Trust operates primary and secondary academies in Wiltshire and Swindon, with 5,544 on rall in the school
census in October 2025.

Structure, governance and management

Constitution

The Academy Trust is a company fimited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The Charitable Company's
Memorandum and Arficles of Association are the primary governing documents of the Academy Trust. The Truslees
of Ascend Learning Trust are also the directors of the Charitable Company for the purposes of company law. The
Charilable Company operates as Ascend Learning Trust.

Defails of the Trustees who served throughout the year, and to the date the accounts are approved are included in
the Reference and Administration Details.

Members' liability

Each Member of the charitable company underiakes to contribute 1o the assets of the charitable company in the
event of if being wound up while they are a Member, or within one year after they cease to be a Member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased o be a
Member.

Trustees' indemnities

Trustees benefit from indemnily insurance purchased at the Academy Trust's expense fo cover the liability of the
Truslees, Ascend Learning Trust is part of the Depariment of Education's risk protection amangement, an
alternafive to insurance where UK Government funds cover losses that arise. The scheme protects the Trustees
and officers and provides cover of up to £10,000,000.

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

Members may appoint up to 8 Trustees. The Board of Trustees may appoint or co-opl Trustees to address skills or
knowledge gaps as determined. Recruitment of Trustees is underiaken through focal and national adveriising and
using specialist organisations, such as Academy Ambassadors to atiract candidates with the skills base required.

The CEOQ shall be treated for the purposes as being an ex-officio Trustee. Co-opted Trustees may also be
appointed from employees but they are non-voting Trustees, through such process as Trustees may deferming,
provided that the tofal number of Trustees (including the CEO) who are employed by ALT does not exceed one third
of the total number of Trustees. The aption has not been used in ALT.

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

The training and induction provided for new liustees depends on their existing experience and is tailored to the
individual. Where necessary, induction will provide training on charity and educational tegal and financial matters.
New frustees can access training information via the National College and through the NGA govemnance services.

Across the Trust membarship of the National Governor Association exists to support both Governors and Trustees
in understanding their roles and offering ftraining beyond induction. Continuous training and development
opportunities are also offered through external bedies such as DfE, RD, and gavernment appointed training
agencies. Intemally, peer to peer support and mentoring is also used.

All rustees are provided with access to Governor Hub and can access coples of minutes, accounts, budgets, plans
and other documents that they will need o underake their role.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Organisational struciure
The ALT governance struciure consists of a tiered structure of Members, Trustees, and Local Goverring Bodies
{LGEs).

The Trustees are responsible for the academy Trust's policies, adopting the Academy Improvement Plans and
budget, monitaring academic and financial performance against these plans and making major decisions about the
direction of the Academy Trust including the Academies’ curriculums, and the achievement and welfare of students
and staff.

The Trustees appoint a Chief Executive Officer to provide executive leadership of the Trust's activities. The CEQ is
the Accounting Officer. The Chief Executive Officer, Primary Education Director and the Secondary Education
Director are line managers of the Headteachers.

The Trust has a Commitiee Siructure with each cormmiitee operating via Terms of Reference which are reviewed
annually. Each Committee has delegated powers fo review the relevant areas:

* Finance, Audit and Risk — this meets 6 times per year and is responsible for monitoring, evalualing, and
reviewing policy and performance in relation to financial management and drafting the annual budget
including setting staffing levels and benchmarks,

This commiltee is also responsible for monitoring, evaluating, and reviewing policy and performance in
relation to compliance with reporting and regulatory requirements and reporting and receiving reports form
internal and external audit

+ Educational Standards - this meets one per term (3 x pa} evaluating and reviewing attainment levels for all
year groups including public examination resulis, strategic cumiculum developments, safeguarding and
pastoral issues, behaviour, and attendance.

HR/People is also part of the Standards Commiltee. This area determines and reviews any strategies and
policies for human resources and organisational development. it also reviews the framework or policy for
remuneration of staff including senior exacutives,

Local Governing Bedies operate at the Academy level. A Trust Scheme of Delegation provides clarity and guidance
for each LGB to fuifil their Terms of Reference, indicating the roles of each part of the structure of the Trust
including the CEO and Head Teachers. Further documented support for LGBs exists in the LGB Constitution, and
an Annual Planner to support each LGB. These documents and pracesses are agreed annually with the Trust
Board. A "Chairs of Chairs’ discussion group involving each Chair of Govermnors and the Chair of the ALT also
enables opportunities for communications, discussions, and reviews.

‘The schools’ Leadership Team (LT} controls the schools at an executive level, implementing and reporting back on
the policies approved by the Board of Trustees or LGB, As a group, each LT is responsible for day-to-day
management of the schoal.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Trust comprise the trustees and the lrust executive team listed in the
reference and administrafive details on page 1. All frusices give their time freely and no Trustee received
remuneration in the year.

Details of Trustees’ expenses and related party transactions are disclosed In the notes to the accounts.

The pay decisions for all employees at all levels of ALT (including the Chief Executive Officer and Trust Execufive
Team) are made in accordance with the ALT pay pelicy, which is agreed by the Board of Trustees. The Pay Policy
provides clarity on who can make pay determinations and how teachers and other staff may achieve pay
prograssion. The Board of Trustees is responsible for datermining the salaries of teaching staff in accordance with
the provisions of the School Teachers' Pay and Conditions’ Doecument and for supporf staff in accordance with the
National Joint Councll for Local Govemment Services National Agreement on Pay and Conditions (Green Book)
and the associated local provisions.

The Board of Trustees Head Teacher and CEO Performance Review and Pay Panel consider whether to award pay
progression points to the CEQ, Executive Team, and Head Teachers (lo a maximum of two). Annual pay
progression within the range for these posts is dependent on performance infentions being exceeded.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Trade union facility time
There were no relevant union officials for the year ending 31 August 2025.
Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials
during the relevant period -

Full-lime equivalent employee number =

Perceniage of time spent on facility time

Perceniage of time Number of employees
0% =
1%-50% -
51%-99% g
100% -

Percenlage of pay bill spent on facilify time

Total cost of facility ime =
Total pay bill 32,917,820
Perceniage of the total pay bill spent on facilty time -

Paid frade union activities

Time spent on paid frade union activilies as a percentage of
total paid facility time hours -

Engagement with emplovees

ALT takes equalities very seriously and Is opposed to all form of discrimination. Our selection processes are non-
discriminatory and always seek to give full and fair consideration to those with disabilities for all vacancies whilst
considering aptitudes and ahilities.

Being a commitied equal opportunifies employer, Ascend Leaming Trust will take every possible step to ensure that
all employees are {reated equally and fairly. All poficies and praclices will conform with the principle of egual
opporiunities in terms of recruitment, selection, training, pramotion, career development, discipline, redundancy,
and dismissal. The Trust aims to ensure that no job applicant receives less favourable treatment because of a
protected characteristic.

The Trust cansults with employees on an individuat or group basis on an employment matter which may affect them
during their employment. This may be in consultation with senior management and union representatives if
required. This will include return to work interview; adjustments to working hours and responshilities; or referrals to
occupational health for professional advice and support.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the Academy Trust
The Trust defines its customers as puplls or students, parents and carers and the community. The Trust engages
with them in a number of ways:

Pupils/Students
+ Being ambitious for every pupil fostering interests and passions
* Providing opportunities for pupils to broaden their horizons
* Promoting positive behaviours
* Sefting out clearly rules, rewards and sanctions ensuring they are communicated and promated wildly
* Ensuring robust safeguarding procedures

Parents/Carers
* Publishing relevant information and creating effective channels of communication including through social
media
* Promoting, monitoring, and reacting to Parent View
+ Planning and running a wide range of events

Community
* Publishing relevant information and creating effective channels of communication including through sacial
and other media
= Planning and running open evenls
= Promoling estates resources and thelr potential cormmunity use

Suppliers

The Trusts preferred suppliers provide us with a wide range of goods and services. In deciding those preferred
suppliers, we ensure that both national and local suppliers have equal oppertunity to participate in the procurement
process and we have a robust procurement policy to ensure adherence to government framewarks, PCR
regulations and value for meney. We also oversee and take reasonable steps to ensure our suppliers comply with
our standards, refating to modern slavery, data protection, environmental responsibility, human rights, and ethics.

Regutators

The DME, Ofsted and the ESFA oversee the educational and financial performance of the Trust. The Trust's aim is
glways to maintain positive and open refationships with the relevant regulators. In order to do so, the Trust works
via various communication channels, to ensure that all parties are fully aware of any current and emerging risks
within our Trusl.

Related parties and other connected charlties and organisations
There are no sponsors of the Trust and we have reported three refated parties to the ESFA, however there are no
related parties which either control or significantly influence its decisions or operations.

The connected party is ALT Enterprises Ltd of which the Trust is the sole shareholder.

Objectives and actlvities

Objects and aims

The Academy Trust's core motto is “Together we Belong, Believe, Become.” The Trust will achieve this through
relentless commitment to the values of Compassion, Aspiration, Respect, Dedication and Integrity’ for all students,
with the potential of every individual within our community valued.

Create and foster a culture of kindness and inclusivity with high expectations and standards.

Develop and retain high calibre professionals who relentlessly pursue the Ascend vision.

Deliver unmissable education which inspires Iimiiless horizons.

Develop foundations that ensures Ascend Learning Trust is robust and resilient and able {o provide a world
class education for generations to come.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 371 AUGUST 2025

The Trust has six sirategic aims that have been agreed with Trustees:
= Quality of Education
+ Govemnance, Legal and Procurement
*+ Information Technology
* Finance
« Estates
* People

Key aclivities and targets are identified in the School Development Plans and are influenced by national changes in
education policy and funding.

Objsctives, strateqies and aclivities
Success for each Academy in ALT will be achieved through strategic planning to ensure that all members of the
Ascend community feel a sense of true belonging:

* Quality of Education
= A culture of belonging is embedded through codified behaviours, high standards of teaching and
leaming and a diverse and relevant curriculum.
* All Ascend pupils wil] receive high quality, inclusive teaching delivered by expert teachers through
a world class cunmiculum.
* Embedding best practice and the most effective staffiing structures to support innovation and
efficiencies in developing and delivering the curriculum.

* Governance, Legal and Procurement

* Through all levels of governance and leadership Ascend promotes an approachable culture with
clear lines of communication and transparency upholding the legal framework.

* Centralise procurement across the frust for effective economies of scale to maximise funds for
student outcomes, Ensure that the governance model is appropriate to meet the needs of the
students.

* Develop and implement transparent policies that promote faimess and equality for all
stakeholders. Gentralise procurement and contracts o ensure accountability and maximise value
for money.

* Information Technology

* Fostering an IT approach that prioritises support and service, while continuously assessing the
impact of technological advancements to provide a technology-driven learning environment.

+ Implementing best-inclass solutions, enhance system efficiency, drive technolagical innovation,
and provide robust support, ensuring that all users experience optimal performance and cutting-
edge capabililies.

+ Consolidating and aligning systems, optimising staffing structures, and promoting cloud-first
technologies, we enable sustainable growth, enhance resilience, and maximise value for money,

* Finance
¢ Establish a culture where ali staff understand the financial impact of the decisions that thay make
on a daily basis,
+ Implement robust financial controls with timely reporting to key stakeholders in order to suppart
decision making which enables budgets to support all students,
« Embedding processes and operafions that create vaiue for money, generate efficiencies and
support the financial vision and growth of the Trust.

* Estates
* Every space within the Ascend estate is designed to foster inclusivity, ensuring all members of the
community feel valued and belong.
* The Ascend estate is designed to inspire achievement, ensuring students have access io
exceptional facilities that drive success within the top 20% nationaily.
* Ascend is committed to susiainable estate strategies, creating resitient systems that support long-
term growth and environmental responsibility whilst maximise value for money.
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* People
= Ascend is an organisation that people aspire to work for. It is consistent both in processes and
policy. Our people uphold the vision and values of Ascend ensuring a feeling of belonging.
+ Ascend will have high aspirations for ourselves and our young people. Our staff know what is
expected of them and our leaders provide support, development and challenge.
= Ascend will develop systems and strategies that prioritise the wellbeing and development of our
people, foster a culture of inclusivity and implement best practice to retain the best staff.

Eublic benefit

The Trustees confirm that they have complied with the duty in Section 17(5) of the Charities Act 2011 to have due
regard to the Charity Commissioner's general guidence on public benefit in exercising their powers or duties. They
have referred to this guidance when reviewing the Academy's aims and objecltives and In planning its future
aclivities.

The Trustees consider that our Trust's aims, and objectives are demonsirated by public benefit.

Strategic report

Achievements and performance

All secondary schools within Ascend Learning Trust are rated good or better by Ofsted, With recent inspections at
three of the four secendaries. Pupil numbers have increased at TWA and LMA due to mobility in-year transfers.
LMA are now full or close to full in all KS3 year groups. Numbers in the 6th form at RWBA have now started fo grow
once again, Noremarsh Junior School have been graded as Good by Ofsted which is a validation of all their
improvement work.

The overall results by school, attendance and pupil nurmnber are shown in the tables on pagss 9 to 10. Resulis were
only slighlly improved on the previous year, however the data has yet been validated by the DIE fellowing Tablas
Checking etrors at their end. Consequently the performance measures are still unvalidated and will change once
the release is made. Reviews of Results and subsequent changes made internally should see the resulls and
performance rise further.

Attendance in all Ascend Primary Schools remains above national averages and, in some areas, with strengih in
some groups such as SENK. Schools work alongside the trust attendance {ead and continue to strive to further
improve attendance overall and in ali groups. Pupil numbers for primary age pupils are dropping nationally and both
the Wellington primaries have had one Reception class for two years In a row. Local Authority prediciions is this will
not change for some years ahead.

Headline performance measures continue io show a posifive narrative across the Primary Schools at Ascend
Learning Trust. In the Phonics Screening Wellington Eagles Primary showed notable improvement, and Wellington
Lions Primary maintained consistent results, with both schools exceeding national average, All threa primary
schoaols improved in the Multiplication Tables Check compared to the last academic year, with performance on track
to surpass the national benchmark. In the KS2 combined headline measures Noremarsh Junior School and
Wellinglon Linons Primary demanstrate constant results compared to last year, Wellington Eagles Primary
experienced a decrease from last year however, resulls remain a significant improvement from 2022-23. Both
Noremarsh Junior School and Wellington Lions Primary are expected to be slightly below the national average,
while Wellington Eagles Primary Is anticipated to fall significantly below the national benchmark.

Feor Key Stage 4 published headline measures, both Attainment 8 and performance in English and Mathematics at
grade 5 and above demonstrate positive trends at Royal Wootton Bassett Academy and The Wellington Academy.
These performance indicators at Kingsbury Green Academy and Lawn Manor Academy have deckned compared io
the previous year. While this may reflect fluctuations in cohort ability, enhancing these outcomes will continue to be
a key area of focus for the secondary phase. At Post 16 the trust showed modest improvements in academic
attainment and value added, with Royal Wootton Bassett Academy and The Wellington Academy demonsirating
significant gains. In contrast, Value Added has decreased at Kingsbury Green Academy, and improving this has
been identified as a priority for the upcoming academic year. Performance in Applied General Qualifications
represents a notable accomplishment for Ascend, with outcome measures improving at all academies and
exceeding both projected outcomes and national averages.
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Operations are increasingly aligned to generate financial efficiencies and improve the efiectiveness of operational
support to schools. The Trust is financially solvent and capable of supporting its vision and strategic objectives.

The Trust has applied fo the national Schools Capital Rebuilding Programme for funding to rebuild both Lawn
Manor Academy and Noremarsh Junior School so that we can offer students the best possible facilities. The SCA
capital funding stream is enabling significant roofing work to be carried out at Kingsbury Green Academy.

Key performance indicators
The main financial performance indicator is the level of reserves held at the balance sheet date.

As funding is based on student numbers this is also a key performance indicator. Pupil numbers for 2025 were
5,544 an increase of 3 over 2024 (5,541), It is anticipated that numbers in Kingsbury Green Academy and Lawn
Manor Academy will confinue to rise.

The Trustees are assessing, using ICFP {interactive curriculum-ed financial planning), the Key Performance
Indicators that would be the most effective to monitor the Trust schools.

The Trust aims for all schoals fo achieve at least national average In national tests and assessments. All schools
are expected to be at least ‘Good’ in Ofstad inspections. The tables below reflect the academic data for the
academic year 24-25 split between Secondary and Primary schools, and this is the basis for future KPls.

Secondary Data

Kingsbury Green Lawn Manor Academy  Royal Wootton The Wellington

Academy Basselt Academy Academy
OFSTED Grade Good Good Good Good
20th June 2022 20th September 2024 14th January 2025 |29th November 2022
KS5 - Post 16 APS 28.85 ' APS 3647 APS 26.53
Average Grade C | Average Grade B- | Average Grade C-
Basics 5+ 30% Basics 5+ 30% Basics 5+ 54% Basics 5+ 34%

KS4 - GCSE A8 39.6 AB 274 A8 50.7 AB 42,1

P8 -0.23 P8 -0.04 P8 0.09 P8-0.13
Pupil Numbers 1081 963 1710 1148
Attendance (Autumn 91.05 92.0% 93.6% 92.5%

Term 1 2025)
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Primary Data

remarsh Junior

School

Wellington Eagles

Primary

Wellington Lions

OFSTED Grade Requires Good
improvements
12th September 20th June 2024 15th September
2025 2023
96.50% 95.30% 95.50%
erm P4
Pupil Numb 171 177 187
KSZ- SATS Reading 72% Reading 50% Reading 63%
Writing 75% Writing £3% Wiriting 61%
Maths 62% Maths 47% Maths 63%
Combined 54% Combined 46% Combined 53%
Year 1 Phonics e 81% 92%
EYFS - GLD 69% 79%

-10-
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Going concem

After making appropriate enquities, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Academy Trust
has adequate resources o confinue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reasaon, it continues
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Furiher delalls regarding the adoption of the
going cancern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate Le. whether there are any material
uncertainiies related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Trust to confinue as
a going concemn. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a periad of at least one year from the date of
authorisalion for issue of the financial statements and have coneluded that the Trust has adequate resources and
cash to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable fulure and there are no material uncertainties about
the Trusf's ability to continue as a going concem.

In making lhis assessment the Trustees have considered the current very challenging financial climate facing the
education sector including unfunded pay rises for teaching and support staff, high energy prices and general price
inflation coupled with uncertainty around absolute increases in future funding. Given ihe potential risks this poses,
the Trust has embarked upon a detailed budgeting process for the next 36 months fo assess likely future
performance, identify potential cost savings and efficiencies, identify opportunities and ensure the Trust remains
financially sound and well prepared for the future.

On 31 August 2025 the Trust had cumulative revenue reserves of £2.4M following an in-year deficit £991K for the
Trust. Under the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook the Trust Is required to always mainiain positive free
reserves and this is a key balance that is closely monitored and has been assessed in preparing the forecasts.
Cash balances at year end were £5.5M.

In preparing the budget forecasts for the next 36 months, the following have been considered:
= The numbers on roll and the impact of the national decline in the birth rate will have an impact, particularly
on the primary scheols during this period
Additional funding which will be rolled into the GAG income from 2025
Review of staffing numbers and the use of cover staff
Additional consideration on the use of external alternative provision suppliers
Close and regular scrutiny of the budgetary position by Management and Trusiees, including the impact of
the current financial challenges

Based on the above assessment the Trustees continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing
the financial statements.

The Trust Limited company, ALT Enterprise Lid beard have decided to keep the company open in the 2025 financial
year for possible future trading opportunities.

Promoting the success of the Company
Under section 172(1)(a) to () of the Companies Act 2006, directors of a company must act in a way most iikely 1o
promote the success of the company, and in doing so must have regard to:

* The likely consequences of any decision in the long term;
The Trust makes all key decisions through reference to its strategic plan, projecting the fiming and impact
of such decisions. This strategy is primarily designed around the objective to improve educational
outcomes for students.

* The interests of the company’s employees:
Our employees are vital to the Trust, and we regard ongoing, regular engagement with them as top priorily.
We measure engagement through regular feedback via staff surveys, We address any issues raised by our
employees as quickly as possible and communicate back to them what we have done. All staff are offered
access o several well-being support services and the Trust seeks to ensure that staff welfare [5 actively
considered and addressed.

-1 -
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The need 1o foster the company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others:

Our relationship with pariners and suppliers is key io our effectiveness. Where the Trust has procured
outsourced services, we seek o ensure that staff and management from that contractor are supporied as
an equal member of the school community and stakeholders.

* The impact of the company’s operations on the community and the environment:
We recognise our responsibility to care for the environment and aim to minimise our environmental impact
in all of our activities. As well as covering environmental issues on the currleulum, the Trust encourages all
staff and students to participate in initiatives to reduce negative environmental impacts. These include the
promotion of recycling waste and actions to maximise efficiency in energy consumption.

The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct:

Qur reputation and the public’s trust in our constifuent schools is fundamental to our future success. We
use our organisational values and behaviours in our recruitment and training and for our employees to
ensure that we maintain high standards, and these are used in our appraisal process,

* The need to act fairly as between members of the company
In terms of members of the Trust, faimess in our dealings is upheld with transparent reporiing at regular
intervals through the year, access fo senior management and a common goal of all children, all
backgrounds, ali succeeding. We aim to be a fully inclusive organisation and we will not unfairly
discriminale against our students, staff or any other member of our community or stakeholders.

Financial review

Most of the Trust's income is cbtained from the in the form of recuirent grants, the use of which is restricted to
pariicular purposes. The grants received from the DiE in the year ended 31st August 2025 and the associated
expenditure, are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

The Trust also received grants for fixed assets from the DfE. In accordance with the Charities Statement of
Recommended Practice, 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities' (SORP 2019), such grants are shown in the
Statement of Financial Activities as restrlcted income in the fixed asset fund. The restricted fixed asset balance is
reduced by annual depreciation charges over the useful Iffe of the assets concemed, as Identified In the Trust
accounting policies.

During the year ended 31st August 2025 the Trust received GAG income totalling £34,928,924 {2024: £32,090,259)
to spend on educational activities and supplies. Additional grants received from the DIE totalled £4,640,243 (2024;
£4,090,943). Qther government grants totalled £2,341,863 (2024: £2,064,114).

Overall, the Statement of Financial Activities shows a deficit of £1,630,354 (2024: £2,359,835), of which £694,000
(2024: £464,000) relates to actuarial losses on defined pension benefit schemes. The net cash position has
improved by £1,452,672 (2024: -£3,172,984) after the removal of depreciation, capital income, pensions scheme
costs and changes In debtors and creditors. This has left the Trust with £2,017,693 (2024: £1,403,811) in
unresiricted funds and a nil balance (2024: £4,338,567) in restricted funds general.

During the 24-25 year there have been no significant events that have affected the financial performance and
financial position of the Trust.

Like all academy Trusts, the reliance is on government funding and initiatives. Longer term planning is partialty
restricted by the lack of timely information regarding funding streams and guaranteed levels and values, and the
way in which they need to be used.

The largest factor impacting financial stability is around staff costs: changes to pension and nationa! insurance
thresholds, cost of living and inflation.

-12-
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Reserves policy

The Board of Trustess review the reserves of the Trust on an annual basis. This review encompasses the nature of
income and expenditure streams by academy, the need to match income with commitments and the nature or
reserves held. The Trustees take into consideration the future of the Trust, growth strategies, the uncertainty over
future income sireams and other key risks identified during the risk review process.

The Trustees have determined that the appropriate level of cash reserves should represent a minimum of one
month's gross salary cost, being estimated at £2.90M. The reason for this is to provide sufficient working capital to
cover delays between spending and receipt of grants and fo provide a cushion to deal with any unexpected
emergencies.

[n additfon, the Trusiees will also review periodically the Reserve value, based on the foliowing:

« To pool reserves, with the exception of any unspent amounts from specific restricted funds (e.g. Sports
Premium) across the Trust to ensure that any financial risk can be managed and mitigated.

= Awareness that future growth plans may necessitate the use of reserves in the short term, with financial
due diligence ahead of formal assignment mitigating any large risk to the Trust.

* To hold in reserve at any one time, a minimum value equal to the cost of one average month's wage bill for
all schools, and the central MAT team.

On 31st August 2025, such reserves totalled £2.4M (2024: £3.4M)
Remedial action is being taken to increase reserves over the coming months.

The defined benefit pension scheme reserve is currently in an asset position however has been capped at Enil.

Invesiment policy

The Board of Trustees have delegated responsibility through the Scheme of Delegation to the Finance, Audit and
Risk Commitiee to approve and review the Investments Policy. The COOQ will manage the reporting to the
committee of financial exposure (utilising cashflow and forecasting) and value for money, taking professional advice
from external companies as required.

Any cash surpluses, use of short-term deposit accounts and notice deposit accounts where cash held which is not
required for operaling activities may be placed on deposit at the most favourable rate available from providers that
are covered by the Financial Services Compensation Scheme.
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Princi

| ri: ncertainties

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the major risks to which the Trust is exposed, including consideration of risks
impacting on trustees’ responsibilities to ensure the trust's estate is safe, well maintained and complies with
relevant regulations, together with the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to
mitigate those risks.

The princlpal risks and uncertainties in the Trust are as follows:

Financial — the Trust has considerable reliance on continued Government funding through the ESFA, There
Is na assurance that Government pelicy or practice will remain the same or that public funding will continue
to be on the same levels or the same terms. In addition, falling birth rates are ceusing some strain on
funding in the primary sector which will work intoc secondary over time. There is ongoing uncertainty in
areas such as energy costs, pension contribution values, and SEND funding which is a growing area of
cost.

Govemance or management — the risk in this area rises from the potential failure o effectively manage the
Trusts finances, internal controls, compliance with regulations and legistation, statulory returns ete. The
Trustee commitiees of Finance, Audit and Risk, and Educational Standards will review these areas and
ask Trust executive management to provide evidence and process to substantiate the Trustee challenge in
thase areas.

Reputationat — the continuing success of the Trust is dependent on continuing to attract pupils in sufficient
numbers and by maintaining the highest educational standards, In addition, the decline in attendance,
post-Covid, is a naiional issue. To miligate risks the Trustees, ensure that student success and
achievement are closely monifored and reviewed through data provided to the Standards Committee.
Safeguarding and Child Protection — the Trustees continue to ensure ihe highest standards are maintained
in the selection and monitoring of staff, the operation of child protection policies and procedures, health &
safety, and discipline.

Staffing ~ the success of the Trust is reliant upon the quality of its staff. The recruitmert landscape is
difficult in academy frusts in terms of the size of candidate pools and competing with others on salary
levels compared to funding. Some of the schools and academies are in geographically challenging
positions, and away from good transport links. This too can make recruitment to vacant positions in these
areas more difficult.

Fraud and mismanagement of funds — The Trust has appointed an internal auditor to carry out checks on
financial systems and records required by the Trust Financial Handbook. All finance staff receive fraining to
keep them up fo date with financial practice requirements and develop their skills in this area.

IT - The risk in this area arises from three main sources. The potential failure of the IT infrastructure
{including cyber risk), failure of equipment which would impact on the teaching/ learning and MIS systems,
and a risk of staff skills and succession planning. The Finance, Risk and Audit commiltee have received an
IT strategy and work is ongoing to strengthen these areas.

Esiates — the Trust previously relied on academy level staff in Estates and H&S positions, together with the
Headteacher, to review and record risks and concerns, reporting to Local Governing Boards (LGBs) and
upwards io the Trust with any significant concems.

This stance was reviewed and in September 2023 a new Trust role of Eslales Manager was craated to
oversee lhe assurance that all academies will comply with relevant regulations (as outlined in the GEMS
Information} and will have a shared database (EVERY) to record audit cutcomes, impact and progress on
compliance which will be reported {o Trustees.

The Trust do have policies on the use of SCA capital funds, and drafi Estates documents (vision, strategy,
and assel management plan} which were approved in AY23-24.

The Trust ensures it has adequale insurance cover both in terms of loss and professional indemnity

The defined benefit pension scheme (LGPS), which is set out In Note 20 to the financial statements,
represents a significant potential liability. Howsver, as the Trustees consider that the Trust can meet its
known annual cortribution commitments for the foreseeable future, the risk from this liability is minimised.
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Fundraising

The Trust encourages students fo raise funds for local, national and international charities, The choice of charilies
is via suggestions received from staii and students, voted aon by the school’s Senior Leadership Team and led and
implemented by key members of staff. The schools work closely with these organisations to ensure thai the
activities are consistent with the schools alms and objectives and comply with alf appropriate guidelines,

There are no fundraising projects where the beneficiary is the Trust or any of its constituent schools.

The Trust does not work with any third-party commercial participators or professional fundraisers to raise funds.
Any fundraising is monitored by the Trustees. There have been no fundraising complaints during 2024-25.

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

Energy consumption kWh
Aggregate of energy consumption in the year 5,290,512
Emissions of CO2 equivalent metric tonnes metric tonnes
Scope 1 - direct emissions
~ Gas combustion 503.00
~ Fuel consumed for owned transport 38.00

—— 541.00

Scope 2 - indirect emissions
- Electricity purchased 440.00

Scope 3 - other indirect emissions
- Fuel consumed for transporl not owned by the Acaderny Trust -

Total gross emissions 981.00

Infensity ratio

Tonnes CO2e per pupil 0.18

Quaniification and reporting methodology
We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the GHG

Reporting Protocal ~ Corporate Standard and have used the 2025 UK Government's Conversion Factors for
Company Reporting.

Intensily measurement

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is iotal gross emissions in meiric tonnes COZe per pupil, the
recommended ratio for the sector.

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency
We have undertaken several sleps to reduce our gross emissions which include the following:

+ Infroduced more onine meetings to reduce travel between school sites

* Applied for the DfE School Rebuilding Programme to address the neads at two Trust schoals, Lawn Manar
and Noremarsh Junior School

* Applied for government funding (de-carbonisation schemes) to enable areas such as lighting and
emissions to be addressed. This will continue to happen as finances allow over the coming years

« Utilised SCA capital funds to undertake capital projects to improve the efficiency of some of our buildings to
reduce heating costs
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Plans for future periods

The Trust is embedding the revised Strategy in 2025 and sets out a clear and thoughtful direction for ths future of
our schools, It reflects our commitment to nurturing every child's potential while growing in a way that is sustainable
and true to our shared values.

We are dedicated to creating environments where students and staff belong, where they are inspired o believe in
themselves and their potential, and where they are supported to become the very bes! they can be by embedding
strong leadership and consistent approaches to teaching, learning and assessment across our academies, we aim
fo ensure that every pupil benefits from excellent teaching and that our growth continues to be ambitious,
sustainable, and values-ted,

The key objectives for the Trust are;
 Strong governance that challenges and supports leaders to improve
* Improving the quality of education and outcomes for all our sfudents

Clarifying the future curricufum offer

Effective and professional central services

A modem and fit for purpose Estate

Reviewing the PF1 coniract to ensure value for money

Developing the growth strategy and expansion of ALT

Auditor
In so far as the Trustees are aware:
+ there is no relevant audit information of which the Charitable Company’s auditor is unaware; and
+ the Trustess have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information,

The Trust will be tendering for external audit services; the successful Auditors will be confirmed at the AGM on 28
January 2026.

The Trustees' report, incorporaling a strategic report, was approved by order of the board of Trusiees, as the
company directors, an 18 December 2025 and signed on its behalf by:

-

N Adams-Nel
Chair
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Scope of responsibility

As Trustees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Ascend Learning Trust has an effective
and appropriate systern of contral, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide only reasonable and not absolute
asswrance against material misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and considered the guidance in the DfE's Govemnance Handbook and competency
framework for gavernance.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day respensibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as Accounting
Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propristy and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement
between Ascend Learning Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to
the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on govemance included here supplements thai described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The Board of Tiustees has formally met six fimes during the year.

Attendance during the year at Ascend Learning Trust Board of meetings was as follows:

Trustees Meetings attended  Out of possible

J Coley (Chief Execulive Officer)

N Coombs (Resigned 28 September 2024)
S Williams (Resigned 7 April 2025)

E Black {Resigned 31 August 2025)

C Cameron (Resighed 31 August 2025)

J Gibson

P Sharp

E Dickinss (Resigned 8 January 2025)

N Adams-Nel {Chair of Trustees)

A Barrow (Appointed 28 October 2024 and resigned 4 December 2025)
S Vegh (Appointed 28 October 2024)

K Barraw (Appointed 1 May 2025)

H Cross (Appointed 1 September 2025)

M Cooper (Appointed 9 December 2025)

Qo NMNAENMODOoOOLWRIOONOO
SO GGOON®DOO G W=2O

There has been five Trustee resignations and four new Trustees welcomed to the Board since the end of the
previous acadsmic year.

The Trustees recognise that the Board needs additional members and will undertake a skills audit in 2025/26 and
are actively seeking new Trustees. New Trustees have familiarised themselves with all committees so that their skill
sets best match the commitiees they have been allocated to.

There are three core functions of governance:
= ensuring the clarity of vision, ethos and strategic direction
= holding executive leaders to account for the educational performance of the schools and students and the
performance management of stajf
* overseeing the financial performance of the Trust and making sure that its money is well spent The
governance arrangements support the Trust to provide high quality education in all of its schools.
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The Trust has a process of continual self-svaluation in regard to skills audits and uses external advice from the NGA
(national Govemance Association) to assist in ensuring compliance and updating skills. In the annual year 2023-24
a full external Governance review was taken at alt leveals.

The Trust have a single Board and a single Scheme of Delegation. There are thres layers of Governance:

1. Members -whose pimary role is fo oversee the achievement of the Trust's objective, acling as its consclence
and moral guardian of its purpose and vision

2. Trustees (the Board) who hold ultimate accountability and legal responsibility for the Trust's management and
administration

3. Board Committees, which includes Local Governing Boards (LGBs) who have been given delegated powers
by the Board through an agreed scheme of delegation fo carry out some governance functions.

The CEO and COO all provide a comprahensive reports for each of the committees that they attend highlighting key
changes, objectives, progress and next steps for each full tem in the areas that they lead. The Trustees are able to
challenge the content of the reports and also underiake 'link' meetings with key staff within schoels to verify actions
and progress of the execufive team in leading improvements across the Trust.

The full Trustees' meeting contains agenda ttems where there is feedivack on finances, schoel improvement and HR.
Trustees are given the oppotunity to challenge and explore areas in more depth. All papers are available on the
Governor Hub portal in advance of all meetings to enable Trustees io prepare and have a good awareness across
the different disciplines within the Trust executive team.

The Finance, Audit and Risk Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustess. Its purpose is fo act with
specific financial oversight of the Trust including a review of the financial information and oversee the budget and
foracast planning, consider the annual report, and meet with the auditors as well as review the Trust's risk register.

Attendance at Trust Finance Committee meetings in the year was as follows:
Trustees Meetings attended  Out of possible

J Coley (Chief Executive Officer)

N Coombs (Resigned 28 September 2024)
5 Williams (Resigned 7 April 2025)

E Black {Resigned 31 August 2025)

P Sharp

N Adams-Nel (Chair of Trustees)

S Vegh (Appointed 28 Ociober 2024)

K Barrow (Appointed 1 May 2025)

[ R e B I U = |
[ R - =R

The Standards Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. ls purpose Is to ensure compliance
with all Statutory Policies which ensure the safety and well-being of all pupils across the Trust. Through evaluating,
monitering, and reviewing reports on the guality of Teaching and Learning, Safeguarding, Behaviour, Attendance
elc. Trustees can consider actions being taken to raise standards.

Its further remit is to monitor and review school forecasts of performance outcomes whilst also reviewing the Trust's
cutricutum policy and making improvement recommendations to the Board. Through ensuring compliance with
annual and half-year staff performance management process and fimetables staff are supporied and areas of staff
development identified.
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Attendance at mestings in the year was as follows:

Trustees Meefings attended  Qut of possible

J Coley (Chief Executive Qfficer)

S Williams (Resigned 7 April 2025)

J Gibson

P Sharp

E Dickinss (Resigned 8 .January 2025)

N Adams-Neil {Chair of Trustees)

A Barrow {Appointed 28 Oclober 2024 and resigned 4 December 2025)
S Vegh {Appointed 28 October 2024)

B O A O
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Review of value for money

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers
good value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value far money refers fo the
educafional and wider sacietal outcomes, as well as estates safety and management, achieved in retum for the
taxpayer resources received,

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during
each academic year and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use
of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Cfficer for the Academy Trust has delivered improved
value for money during the year by:

* Resfructuring and reviewing some of the centralised services
« Reviewing and strengthening procurement processes, specifically around large contracts, and tenders
« |mplementing new processes to evaluate value for money for any additional investment

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal controf is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objeclives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assuranca of effecliveness. The system of infernal contro! is based on an engoing process designed to identify and
prioritise the risks the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively, and
economically.

The system of internal control has been in place in Ascend Learning Trust for the period from 1st September 2024 to
31st August 2025 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Gapacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the Rey risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of
Trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating, and managing the Academy
Trust's significant risks that have been in place for the pericd from 15t Seplember 2024 to 31st August 2025 and up
fo the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the
Board of Trusiees
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The risk and controf framework

The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of dufles and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular It includes:

« Comprehensive budget planning and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial
reports which are reviewed and agreed by ihe Board of Trustees

* Regular reviews by the Finance, Audit and Risk Committee of reports which indicate financial performance

against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes

Seiting targets to measure financial and other performance

Clearly defined purchasing {assets purchase or capital investment) guidelines

Delegation of authority and segregation of duties

|dentification and management of risks

» & & @

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and therefore has appointed a
Audit and Compliance Manager from January 2028 to work alongside Juniper as internal auditor. There will be
specific focus on procurement and contracts initiafly.

The 2024/25 internal audit was delivered on time and did not highlight significant weakness in processes at Ascend
On an annual basis the external auditors prepare a summary report to the committee outlining the areas reviewed,

key findings, recommendalions, and conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess year on year
progress.

The focus for the coming year is on Growth of the MAT, Data and IT {business continuity, data protection, cyber
security), management information reports and Governance structures.

Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
intemal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

» The work of the intemnal auditor
* The work of the extemnal auditor
* The financial management and self-assessment process

* The work of the COO and finance managers within the Trust who have responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the intemal control framework

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
confrol by the Finance, Audit and Risk Commitiee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous
improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the board of trustees on 16 December 2025 and signed on its behall by:

e | =

J Coley N Adams-Nel
Chief Executive O Chair
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As accounting officer of Ascend Leamning Trust, | confirm that [ have had due regard to the framework of authorities
governing regularity, propriety and compiiance, including the trusts funding agreement with the Department for
Education (fE), and the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including responsibilities for estates safety
and management. ] have also considered my responsibility to notify the Academy Trust board of trustees and DIE of
malerial irreguiarity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding, including for estates
safety and management.

| confirm that | and the board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of all funds by the
Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the framework of authorities.

| confirm that the following instances of material frregularity, impropriety or non-compliance have been discovered to
date and have been nolified to the board of trustees and DIE. if any further instances are identified after the date of
this statement, these will be notified to the board of trustees and DfE:

= The trust did not make the relevant declarations in advance of the contract or agrasment commencing with
refated parties using the ESFA's related parly on-line form as per 5.42 of the Academles Trust Handbook.

J Coley
Accounting Officer

16 December 2025
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The trustees (who are also the directors of Ascend Learning Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible
for preparing the trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction
2024 to 2025 published by the Department for Education, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Uinder company law, the
Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a trve and fair view of
the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including
its income and expenditure, for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

= observe the methads and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to
2025;

= make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

* prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business,

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any fime the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial
and other contrals, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They
are also responsible for ensuring that grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.,

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparafion and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation In other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 16 December 2025 and signed on its behalf by:

N Adams-Nel
Chair of Trustees




ASCEND LEARNING TRUST

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE
MEMBERS OF ASCEND LEARNING TRUST

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Ascend Learning Trust for the year ended 31 August 2025 which
comprise the statement of financial activities, the summary income and expenditure account, the balance shaet, the
slatement of cash flows and the noles to the financdial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies, The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporfing Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’ {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Praclice), the
Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to 2025 issued by the Education and Skills
Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a trie and fair view of the state of the academy trust's affairs as at 31 August 2025 and of lts incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance wilth United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requiremenis of the Companies Act 2006; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charilies SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2024 10 2025.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Qur responsibilities under these standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Group and the parent
academy trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We helleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate {o provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statemenis, we have concluded that the trustees’ use of the going concem basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy Trust's ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibllities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The Trustees are responsible for the other information, which comprises the information included in the anneal
report other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Other information includes the Trustees’
report (incorporating the strategic report and direciors’ report) the governance statement and the staterent of
regularity, propriety and compliance, Qur epinion on the censolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information Is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge cobtained in the audit ar otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify
such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstaternents, we are required to determine whether there is a
material misstatement in the consolidated financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information.
If, based an the work we have performed, we conclude that there s a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing 1o reporl in this regard.
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Opinions on ofher matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the frustees' report including the incarporated strategic report and directors’ report
prepared for the purpose of company law, for the financial year for which the consolidated accounts are
prepared is consistent with the accounts; and

- the strategic report and directors report included within the trustees' report have been prepared in accordance
with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the trustees' report, including the incorporated strategic
report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in refation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires

us 1o report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or retums adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

- the financial statements are not in agreement wiih the accounting records and retums; or

- certain disclosures of frustees’ remuneration specified by faw are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the statement of trustees’ responsibifities, the Trustees (who are also the the directors of
the academy trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemal control as the Trusteas
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from materjal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the academy brust's
ability to conlinue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustses either intend to liquidate the academy trust, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our abjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is nol a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with |SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered materal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the accounts is located on the Financial Reporiing
Council's website at: http/fwww.frc_org.ukfauditorsresponsibifities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, Including fraud, is detailed below.
Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

The objectives of our audit in respect of fraud, are; to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
accounts due to fraud; to obtain suffictent appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of matenal
misstatemnent due lo fraud, through designing and implementing appropriate responses to those assessed risks;
and {o respond appropriately to instances of fraud or suspected fraud identified during the audit. However, the
prirmary responsibility for the prevention and delection of fraud rests with both management and those charged with
governance of the Academy Trust.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 202§

Our approach was as follows:

» The engagement pariner selecled staff for the audit, led by persons who it was deemed had sufficient
experience and who had the required competence and skills to be able to identify or recognise non-

compliance with laws and regulations.

* Wo assessed the risk of imegularities as part of our audit planning, and ongoing review, including those due
to fraud, management override was identified as a significant fraud risk. This is due {o the abiliy to bypass

controls through inappropriate expenditure and accounting policies adapled.

* Completeness of income was identified as a significant risk fo the audit, as grant income may not be

recoghised in accordance with the SORP.

* We obfained an understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements applicable to the charity and we
considered the most significant to be Academies Accounts Direction, the Charity SORP, UK financial
reporting standards as issued by the Financfal Reporting Councll, Companies Act 2006 and UK Taxation
iegislation. We considered how the Academy Trust and group complies with these requirements by

discussions with management and those charged with governance.

* We inquired of management and those charged with governance as to any known instances of non-
compliance or suspected nen-compliance with laws and regulations, Consideration was also made of the

internal controls in place to mitigate the identified risks.

« We assessed the contrel environment, documenting the systems, condrols and processes adopted. The
audit approach incomporated a combination of controls where appropriate, analytical review and substantive
procedures involving tests of fransactions and balances. Any irregularities noted were discussed with

management and additional corroborative evidence was obtained as required.

To address the risk of fraud through management override we:

performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;
tested journal entries to identify any unusual transactions;

tested items of expenditure to ensure that they were valid and appropriate;
confirmed monthly management accounis were reviewed by the board;

indicative of potential bias;

assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounling estimates were

= reviewed the disclosures within the accounts to ensure they meet the requirements of the accounting

standards and relevant legislation.
In response to the risk of irregularities with regards to completeness of income we:

* completed analylical work, fo include comparison with prior perieds;

= agreed a sample of documentation to confirm thai relevant eniries were reflected in the accounting records

and allocaied {o the correct period and

« reviewed minutes of trustees’ meetings and confirmed income sources mentioned were included comecly

within the accounts.

There are inherent limitations in our audit procedures described above. The more removed that laws and
regulations are from financial transactions, the less lkely it is that we would become aware of non-compliance.
Auditing standards also limit the audit procedures required to identify non-compliance with laws and regulations o
enquiry of the trustees and other management and the inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.

Materia] misstatements that arise due o fraud can be harder to detect than those that arise from error as they may

involve deliberate concealment or collusion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemal control that we

identify during our audit.
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ASCEND LEARNING TRUST

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE
MEMBERS OF ASCEND LEARNING TRUST (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Use of our report

nies Agt 2006. Ourfaudit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the academy frust's
membafs tho atters we arg required fo state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the

Robert WacDonald (Senior Statutory
For and on behalf of Moore (South) LILP, Statu
Chartered Accountants

33 The Clarendon Centre

Salisbury Business Park

Dairy Meadow Lane

Salisbury

Wiltshire

SP1 274

Date: ZZMB?W 202—5
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ASCEND LEARNING TRUST

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT ON REGULARITY TC ASCEND
LEARNING TRUST AND THE SECRETARY OF STATE FOR EDUCATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

In accordance with the terms of our engagement Istter dated 22 July 2022 and further to the requirements of ihe
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 o 2025, we
have carried out an engagement to cbtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income
received by Ascend Leaming Trust during the period 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025 have been applied to the
purposes identified by Parliament and the financial fransactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Ascend Learning Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement
letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might stale to the Ascend Learning Trust and ESFA those matters
we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept
or assume responsibility to anyone other than Ascend Lsearning Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for
the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the accounting officer of Ascend Learning Trust and the reporting accountant
The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of Ascend Learning Trust's funding agreement with
the Secretary of State for Education dated 23 March 2010 and the deed of variation dated 27 April 2017 and fhe
Academies Trust Handbook, extant from 1 September 2024, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income

received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financlal iransactions conform to the authorities
which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance,
and are fo obfain fimiled assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of
the extant Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting Accountants of Academy Trusts. We report to
you whether anything has come fo our altention in carrying out our work which suggests that in ali material respects,
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025 have not been
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform 1o ihe authorities
which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by the DIE, which requires a limited assurance engagement as set out in our
engagement letter.

The oblective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficlent appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequenily dees not enable us fo ebtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do nol express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examinaticn, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy Trust's income and expenditure.

The work underiaken {o draw to our conclusion includes:

= gonsiderafion of the evidence supporting the Accounting Officer’s statement on regularity, propriety and
compliance;

analytical pracedures on the general activities of the Academy Trust,

a review of Minufes of Committees and Board Meetings which may be refevant to regularity;

consideration of discussions with key personnel, including the Accounting Officer and Governing Body;

tests of control have been carried out on a control activity which are relevant io regularity;

substantive testing of individual transactions.
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ASCEND LEARNING TRUST

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT ON REGULARITY TO ASCEND
LEARNING TRUST AND THE SECRETARY OF STATE FOR EDUCATION (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Concluslon

In the course of our work, except for the maiter listed below, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that
in all material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the pericd 1 September 2024 to 31
August 2025 has not been applied for the purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not
conform to the authorities which govern them.

* The frust did not make the relevant declarations in advance of the contract or agreement commencing with
related parlies using the ESFA's related party on-line form as per 5.42 of the Academies Trust Handbook.

Meoua (St ) f

Reporting Accountant
Moore (South) LLP

33 The Clarendon Centre
Salisbury Business Park
Dairy Meadow Lane
Salisbury

Wiltshire

SP1 2TJ

o 227 December 202.5

-o8-



ASCEND LEARNING TRUST

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

ACCOUNT

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Endowment Total Total
funds General Fixed asset funds 2025 2024
Notes £ £ £ £ & £
Income and
endowments from:
Donations and capital
grants 3 - 256,311 1,565,567 - 1,821,878 1,195,485
Charitable activities:
- Funding for educational
aperations 4 - 41911030 - - 41,911,030 38,245.316
- Boarding activities 23 - 86,010 - - 86,010 399,884
- Teaching School and
SCITT activities 4 - - - - - 503,511
Other trading activities B 1,063,732 - - - 1,083,732 1,366,457
Invesiments 5 87.271 - - - 57,271 23,093
Total 1,121,003 42,253,351 1,565,567 - 44,939,921 41,733,746
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities:
- Educational operalions 9 773,121 42,406,818 2,419,273 - 45,699,212 42522530
- Boarding acfivities 28 - 277,063 - - 277,063 537,028
- Teaching School and
SCITT activities 9 - - - - - 570,023
Total 7 773,121 42,683,881 2,418,273 - 45876,275 43,629,681
Net income/
{expenditure) 347,882 (430,530) {853,706) - (936,354) (1,895,835)
Transfers betweenfunds 18 266,000 (214,127) 214,127 (266,000) - -
Other recognised gains/
(losses)
Actuariat losses on
defined benefit pension
schemes 20 - {694,000) - - (694,000) (464,000)
Net movement in funds 613,882 (1,338,657) (639,579) {266,000) (1,630,354) (2,359,835)
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought
forward 1,403,811 1,338,657 61,046,772 648,566 64,437,806 66,797,641

Total funds carried
forward 2,017,693

60,407,193 382,566 62807452 64,437,806
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ASCEND LEARNING TRUST

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Comparative year information Unrestricted Resfricted funds: Endowment Total
Year ended 31 August 2024 funds General Fixed asset funds 2024
Notes £ £ £ £ E
Ingcome and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants 3 - 272,409 923,076 - 1,195,485
Charitable activities:
- Funding for educational operations 4 - 38,245,316 - - 38,245316
- Boarding activities 28 - 399,884 - - 399,884
- Teaching School and SCITT activities 4 - 503,511 - - 503,511
Other trading activities 6 1,366,457 - - - 1,366,457
Investments 5 23,093 - - - 23,093
Total 1,389,550 39,421,120 923,076 - 41,733,746
Expenditure on:
Charitable aclivities:
- Educational operations 9 1,271,092 39040466 2210972 - 42,522,530
- Boarding acfivities 28 - 537,028 - - 537,028
- Teaching School and SCITT activities g - 570,023 - - 570,023
Total 7 1,271,092 40,147,517 2,210,972 - 43,629,581
Net Incomel/{sxpenditure) 118,458 (726,397) (1,287,896) - (1,895,835)
Transfers between funds 18 (165,015)  (680,326) 845,341 - -
Other recognised gains/{losses)
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pensien
schemes 20 - {464,000) - - (464,000}
Net movement in funds (46,557) (1,870,723) (442,555) - (2,359,835)
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 1,450,368 3,200,380 61,489,327 648,566 66,797,641
Total funds carried forward 1403,811 1,338,657 61,048,772 648,566

64,437,806
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ASCEND LEARNING TRUST

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2025

Fixed assets
Tangible asseis
Investments

Current assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets

Net assets excluding pension asset
Defined benefit pension scheme asset
Total nef assefs

Funds of the Academy Trust;
Restricied funds

- Fixed asset funds

- Restricted income funds

- Endowment funds

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

Notes

13

14

15

16

20

18

18

2025
£ £
58,881,245
i
58,891,246
2,383,013
£,505,956
7,889,863
(4,073,863)
3,816,206
62,807,452
62,807 452
60,407,183
382.5663
60,789,759
2,017,693
62,807,452

2024

4,739,019

4,053,284

8,792,303

(4,778,340)

£

60,423,842
1

60,423,843

4,013,963

64,437,808

64,437,806

61,046,772
1,338,657
648,566
63,033,995
1,403,811

64,437,808

The financial statemenis on pages 29 to 60 were approved by the Trustees and authorised for issue on 16
December 2025 and are signed on their behalf by:

N Adams-Nel
Chair of Trustees

Company regisiration number 07569743 (England and Wales)
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ASCEND LEARNING TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Notes
Cash fiows from operating acfivities
Net cash provided byf{used in) operating
activities 23

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends, interest and renis from investments
Capital grants from DfE Group

Capital funding received from sponsors and others
Purchase of tangible fixed assels

Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets

Net cash provided byl{used in) investing activities

Net increase/(decrease) In cash and cash
equivalents in the reporiing period

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and eash equivalents at end of the year

2025

£ £

816,509
57,271
953,437
12,130
(984,549)
(2,126)

636,163

1,452,672

4,053,284

6,505,956

2024
£ £
(1,518,585)
23,093
923,076
(2,600,588)
(1,654,419)
(3,172,984)
7,226,268

4,053,284
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ASCEND LEARNING TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

1.1

1.2

Accounting policies

Ascend Learning Trust is a charitable company [imited by guarantes incorporated in England and Wales, The
address of its principal place of business is given on page 1 and the nature of its operations are set oul in the
trustees' report.

A summatry of the principal accouniing poficies adopted (which have been appliad consistenily, except where
noted), judgemenis and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is & public benefit entity under FRS 102, have bean
prepared under the histerical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable
in the UK and Republic of Irefand (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Siatement of
Recommended Praclice applicable to charifies preparing their financlal statements in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP {FRS
102}), the Academies Accounis Direction 2024 to 2025 issued by the Department for Education, the Charities
Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, ie whelher there are any material
uncertainties refated to evenls or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the charitable
company to continue as a going concem. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at
lzast one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the
Academy Trust has adequate resources to confinue in operational exisience faor the foreseeable future and
there are no material uncertainties about the Academy Trust's ability to confinue as a golng concern.

The Trust board has considered pupil numbers, medium term budgets and the impact of future schools
joining the MAT. Based on the forecast prepared the Trust has adequate cash reserves in place to support
any future anticipated deficits. For this reason it continues to adopt the going coneern basis in preparing the
financial statemants.

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entillement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds cn the
balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is
not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entiflement occurs before income is
received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of financial activities in the period for which it is
receivable, and any abatement in respect of the perfod is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capltal grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts
of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are
recognised when there is entifement and are not deferred aver the life of the asset on which they are
expended.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis {where there are no performance-related conditions) where
the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.
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ASCEND LEARNING TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

1

14

Accounting policies (Continued)

Other income

Other income is recognised in tha period it is receivable and to the extent the goods have been provided or
on completion of the service.

Danated fixed assets

Donated fixed assets are measured at fair value uniess it is impractical to measure this reliably, in which case
the cost of the item to the donor is used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and a
corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful
economic life in accordance with the Academy Trust's accounting policies.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a
third parly, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement, and the amount of
the obligation can be measured reliably.

Expenditure is classified by activily. The costs of each activity are made up of the tatal of direct costs and
shared costs, including support costs involved in underiaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single
activity are allocated directly o that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one actvity and
support costs which are not affributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a
basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and
depreciation charges are allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

All resources expended are inclusive of irecoverable VAT,

Expenditure on rajsing funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for s charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activilies
These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apperiioned to charitable activities.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assels and are camied at cost, net of
depreciaticn and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or
from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected
useful economic fife. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding required continued use of
the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities
and carried forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged direclly to the
restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been
acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricied fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than land, at rates calculated lo write off the cost of
each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Buildings 50 years
Plant and machinery 10 years
Computer eguipment 3 years
Fixtures, fittings & equipment 10 - 20 years
Motor vehicles 4 years




ASCEND LLEARNING TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

1.8

1.7

1.10

Accounting policies {Continued)

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shorifalls belween the carrying value of fixed
assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in
the siatement of financial activities.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recegnised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past ovent, it is
probable that a kansfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the setiement
can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy Trust anticipates it will
pay to seftie the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods of services it must
provide.

Leased assets

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged against income on a straight line basis over the periad
of the lease.

Ascend Leaming Trust is currently involved in a PFl agreement for the building which it occupies. The
academy does not receive ownership of the building built by a Confractor untii the end of the Project
Agreement. Whilst the PFI agreement remains between the Local Authority and the Contractor, the academy
makes a contribution fo the unitary charge via the Schools Agreement The contributions are spilt into two
seclions, the basic annual payment calculated as a percentage of funding and the sixth form paymenis which
are based on a service agreement only. The academy's contributions have been recognised as operating
charges in the Statement of Financial Activities on a straight line basis over the life of the contract.

Al the end of the PF| contract, the risks and rewards will transfer to the council, The council will then have the
decision to transfer the building with its risks and rewards to the academy.

Investments
Fixed asset invesiments are stated at market value.

Financial instruments

The Academny Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assels and
financial liabiliies of the Academy Trust and their measurement basis are as follows,

Financial assels
Trade and other debfors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised
cost. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Finangiai liabilities
Trade creditars, accruals and other craditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost.
Taxation and sacial sscurity are niot included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.

Deferred income is not deemed fo be a financial liability, as the cash seltlement has already taken place and
there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Taxation

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schadule § of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.
Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from faxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the
Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1892, fo the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to
charitable purposes.
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ASCEND LEARNING TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

1.1

1.12

1.13

1.14

Accounting policies (Continued)

Pensions benefiis

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
(TPS") and the Local Government Pensich Scheme (LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes and the
assets are held separately from those of the Academy Trust.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and confributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over
employees' working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary based on quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. The TPS is an unfunded
multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is
treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions are recognised in the
period to which they relate,

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Academy
Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and
liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate
equivalent fo the current rate of return on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the
liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet
date. The amounts charged to net income or expenditure are the current service costs and the costs of
scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtaitments. They are included as part of staff costs
as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the statement of
financial activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the
scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by
the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme
assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by
funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/
donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Agency Arrangements

The academy frust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from EFSA. Payments received from
EFSA and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the statement of financial activities as
the trust does not have control over the charitable applicafion of the funds. The trust can use up to 5% of the
allocation towards it's own administration costs and that is recognised in the statement of financial activities.

The school was an accredited provider of a School-centred Initial Teacher Training {(SCITT) programme and
receives funding from the Nafional College of Teaching and Learning (NCTL). The academy trust acted as an
agent in distributing SCITT bursary funds from the NCTL. Payments received from NCTL and subsequent
disbursements to the student teachers are excluded from the financial activities as the trust does not have
control over the charitable application of the funds. The frust cannot use any of the allocation towards it's own
administration costs. The funds received, paid and any balances held are disclosed in note 27.

Consolidation exemption

The resulis of Ascend Learning Trust Enterprise Ltd, a 100% subsidiary of Ascend Learning Trust have not

been consolidated into the financial statements as the activities are not material for the purposes of giving a
trita and fair view in the cnntaxt nf tha arann



ASCEND LEARNING TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

2 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Accounting estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on histerical experience and
other factors, including expactations of future events that are belioved to be remssonable under the
circumstances.

ritical 3 ing estimates and assumptions
The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
eslimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimales and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilittes within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumpfions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost or incorne for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assuraptions,
which are disclosed in note 19, will impact the camying amount of the pension lability. Furthermore a roll
forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2022
has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2025. Any differences between the
figures detived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the camying
amount of the pensicn liability.

As at 31 August 2024 and 31 August 2025 the actuarial valuations calculated an asset position. A defined
benefit pension asset should only be recognised to the extent that the entity is able to recover the surplus,
either through reduced contribufions in the future or through refunds from the plan. The frust has deemed it
uncertain that the frust would receive reduced employer pension contributions to the extent of the asset level
and is not expecting a refund from the scheme therefore has restricted this asset to zerc.

A significant estimate has been made in respect of the PFl charge commitments in note 22. The Trust is
unable to calculate the actual commitment as the ongoing charge is based on unknown future variables which
will fluctuate in coming years such as student numbers and the RPI.

Critical areas of judgement

On converslon to an academy frust, the asset and [iabilities of the Trust are measured at fair vakie. This
includes any buildings. The valuation of buildings involves a significant degree of estimation refer to Note 13
for further detail of this estimation.

There are a number of instances where a purchase involee has not been received post year end in respect of
services received during the year. As a consequence, management make a judgement as to the extent of the
relevant cosis based on information available for which an accruals provision is included in the financial
statements.

3 Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted Restricted Total Tofal

funds funds 2025 2024

£ £ £ £

Capital grants - 1,565,567 1,565,567 923,076

Other donations - 258,311 256,311 272,409
- 1,821,878

1,821,878 1,195,485
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4

Funding for the Academy Trust's charitable activities

Educational operations

DfE/ESFA granis

General annual grant (GAG}

Other DIE/ESFA grants:

- UIFSM

- Pupil premium

- Teacher pay grant

- Teacher pension grant

- Core school budget grant

- Mainstream School Additional Grant
- Others

Other government grants
Local authority grants
Other government grants

Total funding for educational operations

Boarding income

SCITT income

Total funding

Investment income

Qther investmant income

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2025 2024
£ £ E £

- 34,928,824 24,928,924 32,080,259

- 70,098 70,099 81,240

- 1,671,294 1,671,294 1,805,153

- 534,658 534,658 530,171

- 827,968 827 868 402,666

- 1,242,668 1,242 669 -

- - - 1,002,672

- 293,655 293,555 469,041

- 39,569,167 39,569,167 36,181,202

- 2,321,405 2,321,405 2,030,708

- 20,458 20,458 33,406

- 2,341,863 2,341,863 2,064,114

- 41,911,030 41,914,030 38,245,316

- 86,010 86,010 399,884

- - - 603,611

- 41,997,040 41,997,040 38,148,711
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2025 2024
£ £ £ £
57,271 - 57,271 23,003
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] Other trading activities

Hire of premises and equinment
Catering income

Recharged salary costs

Trips income

Other income

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2025 2024

£ £ £ £

66,079 - 66,079 57,324
8,528 - 9,528 -

- - - 125,183

351,729 - 351,729 681,883
636,386 - 636,396 502,067
1,063,732 - 1,063,732 1,366,457

Included within other income are exam fees income, school bus Income, lockers income, school trends

income and siaff subs/book club income.

7 Expenditure

Non-pay expenditure Total Total
Staff costs Premises Other 2025 2024
£ £ £ £ £
Academy's educational operations
- Direct costs 27,419,171 2,419,273 4,278,349 34,116,793 33,150,127
- Allocated support costs 5,921,772 3,076,265 2,484,382 11482418 9,372,403
Boarding activilies
- Direct costs 105,200 - 96,835 202,035 121,698
- Allocated support costs 63,870 8,155 3,003 75,028 415,330
Teaching School and SCITT
aclivities
- Direct costs - - - - 536,045
- Allocated support costs - - - - 33,978
33,510,013 5,503,693 6,862,569 45,876,275 43,629,581
Net incomeKexpenditure} for the year includes: 2025 2024
£ £
Operaiing lease rentals 140,849 124,670
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 2,388,494 2,198,280
Loss on disposal of fixed assefs 20,779 12,692
Fees payable to auditor for;
- Audit 25,200 24,000
- Other services 9,400 8,925
Net interest on defined benefit pension liabitity (257,000) (160,000}
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8 Central services

Ascend Learning Trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:
+ Finance, IT and Business Services
¢ Human Resources Services
+ School Improvement Services
= Admin and Support Services
= Governing and Professional Services
« Leadership and Teaching Services

The Trust charges for these services based at 8% of GAG income for the years ended 31 August 2025 and
6% for the year ended 31 August 2024,

The amounts charged during the year were as follows: 2025 2024

£ £
Kingsbury Green Academy 518,017 343,164
Royal Wootion Basset Acaderny 857,249 621,372
Lawn Manor Academy 847,237 349,851
Ascend Learning Trust - 12,000
Naremarsh Junior School 86,499 63,778
Ascend Learning Trust Enterprises Limited - -
The Wellington Academy 579,999 412,201
Wellington Lions Primary Academny 91,854 70,585
Wellington Eagles Primary Academy 80,298 54,692

2,771,153 1,827,643

9 Charitahle activities

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2025 2024
£ £ £ £
Direct costs

Educational operations 773,121 33,343,672 34,116,793 33,150,127
Boarding activities - 202,035 202,035 121,698
Teaching School and SCITT activities - - - 536,045

Support costs
Edueational operations - 11,482,419 11,482,419 9,372,403
Boarding activities - 75,028 75,028 415,330
Teaching School and SCITT activities - - - 33,978

773,121 45,103,154 45876275 43,629,581
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) Charitable activities (Continued)
Analysls of cosis Educational Total Total
Boarding operations 2025 2024

acfivities
£ £ £ £

Direct costs

Teaching and educational support staff costs 105,200 27,442 245 27 547 445 26,257 897
Staff development - 156,477 156,477 132,980
Depraciation - 2,419,273 2,419,273 2,210,972
Technology costs 186 359,306 369,492 345,265
Educational supplies and services - 1,756,860 1,766,960 2,183,767
Examination fees - 520,695 520,695 543,823
PFI charges - 1,033,240 1,033,240 1,237,211
Other direct costs 96,649 428,597 525246 895,955

202,036 34,116,793 34,318,828 33,807,870

Support costs

Support staff costs 63,870 6,161,494 6,225,364 4,083,426
Technology costs - 692,845 692,845 632,968
Maintenance of premises and equipment 8,155 1,176,970 1,185,125 925,604
Cleaning - 852,500 852,500 845737
Energy costs - 728,651 728,651 1,284,035
Rent, rates and other occupancy costs - 172,930 172,930 181,797
Insurance - 145,214 145,214 131,384
Security and transport 3,995 55,118 59,113 256,206
Calering 765 797,249 798,014 801,345
Finance costs - {257,000} (2567,000) {180,000)
iegal costs - 14,421 14,421 36,850
Other support costs (1,757} 903,508 801,751 772914
Govemnance costs - 38,519 38,519 29,445

75,028 11,482,419 11,657 447 9,821,711

4=



ASCEND LEARNING TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

10

Staff

Staff costs and employee benefits
Staff costs during the year were:

2025 2024

£ £

Wages and salaries 24,398,568 22,203,552
Social security costs 2,616,782 2,233,708
Pension cosls 5,902,440 5,019,222
Staff costs - employees 32,917,820 29,456,483
Agency staff costs 490,042 363,626
Stalf restructuring costs 102,151 220,627
33,510,013 30,040,738

Staff development and other staff costs 419,273 433,567
Total staff expenditure 33,929,286 30,474,303

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Redundancy payments 65,613 59,002
Other restructuring cosls 36,538 161,625

102,151 220,627

Special staff severance payments
Special staff setflement payments are amounis paid to employees outside of stalutory and contractual

requirements. Included in slaff restruciuring costs are special payments totalling £36,538 {2024: £63,498).
Individually, the payments were: £21,780, £12,758, and £2,000,

Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:

2025 2024

Number Number

Teachers 310 204
Administration and support 529 4186
Management 50 44

889 754
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10 Staff {Continued)
The number of persons employed, expressed as a full time equivalent, was as follows:

2025 2024

Number Number

Teachers 273 273

Administration and support 2386 223

Management 48 42

557 538

Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs and employer
national insurance contributions) exceeded £60,000 was:

2025 2024
Number Number
£60,001 - £70,000 33 12
£70,001 - £80,000 9 8
£80,001 - £90,000 6 5
£90,001 - £100,000 4 2
£100,001 - £110,000 i 1
£110,001 - £120,000 2 3
£120,001 - £130,000 2 -
£130,001 - £140,000 i
£160,001 - £170,000 1 -

Key management persannel

The key managemeni personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Trustees and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The fotal amount of key management personnel benefits (including employer
pension conftributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel
for their services to the Academy Trust was £1,388 506 (2024: £1,252,302).
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12

13

Trustees' remuneration and expenses

The GEO only receives remuneration in respect of services they provided undertaking the role of CEO, and
not in respect of thelr services as a Trustee. £1,317 was reimbursed to the CEQO in respect of trave] and
subsistence whilst undertaking the rale as CEO (2024: £nil). Other Trustees did not receive any payments,
other than expenses, from the academy trust in respect of their role as Trustees. During the year, there were
no travel and subsistence payments refmbursed to trustees (2024: £nil).

The value of frustees' remunearation was as follows:
J Coley (CEO and accounting officer)
Salary £160,001 - £165,000 (2024: £135,001 - £140,000)
Employers Pension £40,001 - £45,000 (2024: £30,001 - £35,000)
Andrew Bamow (trustes)
Salary £30,001 - £35,000 (2024 £nil)
Employers Pension £5,001 - £10,000 (2024: £nil)

Other related party transactions involving the Trustees are set out within the related parties note.
Trustees' and officers’ insurance

in accordance with normal commercial practice, the Academy Trust has purchased insurance to protect
Trustees and officers frem claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions oceurring whilst on Academy
Trust business. The insurance provides cover up to £5,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the year
ended 31 August 2025 was included within the maln school policy premium.

Tangible fixed assets

Land and Flantand Computer Fixtures, Motor Total
buildings machinery equlpment fittings & vehicles
equipment
£ £ £ £ £ £

Cost
At 1 September 2024 66,181,476 22021 3,245,521 1,305,971 19,495 70,774,484
Additions 656,675 - 237,218 90,656 - 984,549
Disposals - - - (18,663) - (18,653)
Af 31 August 2025 66,838,151 22021 3482739 1,377,974 19,495 71,740,380
Depreciation
At 1 September 2024 7,805,986 18,022 1,807,801 617,210 1,623 10,350,642
Charge for the year 1,617,005 1,200 658,245 117,574 4489  2398,483
At 31 August 2025 9,422,991 19,222 2,566,046 734,784 6,092 12,749,135
Net book value
At 31 Augusi 2025 57,415,160 2,799 916,693 643,190 13,403 58,891,245
At 31 August 2024 58,375,490 3999 1,337,720 688,761 17,872 60,423,842
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13 Tangible fixed assets {Continuad)

14

Included within land and buildings is Royal Wootton Basseft Academy's leasehold land and sixth form
buildings, these assets wers valued on the depreciated replacement cost method in an exercise undertaken
by the Education Funding Agency as at the 31 August 2012. The tofal land on the site was valued at
£1,748,309 and the sixth form building at £2,019,342, There is a lease in place with Wiltshire Council for the
land which runs until March 2032.

Royal Wootton Bassett Academy's main building was constructed separately on a PF1 contract by Wiltshire
Council, who recharge the payments from WHEP (the providers of the arrangement) to the academy. This has
not been recognised as an asset in the financial statements. instead, it has been treated as an operating
lease and commitments disclosed in note 23, The PFl contract has 7 vears left.

Lawn Manor Academy's leasehold land and buildings were brought in as a donation from the existing
academy into the mulli-academy trust on 1 May 2017. The land and building were donated at the net book
value as at 1 May 2017. The land was valued at £1,915,137.

Freehold land and buildings with a value of £12,108,724 were transferred from Kingsbury Green Academy
{previcusly John Beniley School) on 1ist Aprit 2019, This consists land with a value of £2,290,000 and
buildings with a value of £9,816,724. These were valued in 2011 on the depreciated replacement cost method
in an exercise undertaken by the ESFA. The transfer value of the [and represenis the ESFA value and the
building has been transferred at the depreciated value as at 1st April 2019.

Freehold land and buildings with a value of £1,340,738 were transferred on conversion from Noremarsh
Junior School on 1st October 2018. This consists of land with a value of £468,864 and buildings with a value
of £871,874. These were valued by Wiltshire Council in 2016.

Long leasehold land and buildings occupied by the Wellington Academy were transferred into the Trust at net
book value of £25,710,959. The historic cost of £32,221,265 was recognised at construction cost. The land
and buildings are leased by the Wellington Academy from Wiltshire County Council. The site is being leased
over 125 years at a peppercorn rent of £100 per annum.

The leasehold land and buildings owned by Wellington Lions Primary Academy were transferred into the Trust
at net book value of £1,828,120. The property is under a 125 year lease with Wiltshire County Council. The
historic cost of £3,491,000 was provided by an ESFA valuation,

The land and buildings at Wellington Eagles Primary Academy were introduced as a donation from Wiltshire
County Council during the year as at 11 March 2022, A 125 year lease agreement had been signed during the
period. The valuation of the land and buildings was based on the ESFA deskiop valuafion which valued the
properties at £880,000 and £4,790,000 respectively.

Fixed assef investmentis

Cash
£
Markef value
At 1 September 2024 and 31 August 2025 1
Historical cost:
At 31 August 2025 1
At 31 August 2024 1
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15

16

Fixed asset investmentis {Gontinued}

Heldings of more than 20%
The Academy Trust holds more than 20% of the share capital of the following undertakings:

Company Country of registration or Shares held
incorporation
Class %
Subsidiary undertakings
Ascend Leaming Trust Enterprise Limited England Ordinary 100

The aggregate amount of capital and reserves and the results of these underiakings for the last relevant
financial year were as follows:

Capitaland Profit/(loss)
reserves for the year

Principal activities £ £

Ascend Learning Trust Enterprise Limited Provision of leftings (16,042) 9,729
Debtors

2025 2024

£ £

Trade debtors 170,644 35,531

Amounts owed by group undertakings - 100,372

VAT recoverable 547,098 3,666,883

Other debtors 598,052 311,284

Prepayments and accrued income 1,068,119 622,949

2,383,213 4,738,019

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2025 2024

£ £

Trade creditors 924 835 1,704,506
QOther taxation and social security 1,380,872 1,154,654
Other creditors 8,31 6,749
Accruals and deferred income 1,749,845 1,912,431

4,073,663 4,778,340

46 -



ASCEND LEARNING TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

17  Deferred income

Defarred incame is included within:
Creditors due within one year

Deferred income at 1 September 2024
Released from previous years
Resources deferred in the year

Deferred income at 31 August 2025

2025 2024

£ £
796,572 658,353
658,353 942,309
(658,353)  (942,309)
796,572 658,353
796,572 658,353

Deferred income relates to income which was received in the year to 31 August 2025 for the year ending 31
August 2026. At the balance shest date the Group was holding funds received in advance in relation to:

Bearding Deposits and Fees

Local Authority Funding

UIFS

Trips

Funds held as agent {including bursary funds)
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Funds

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
UIFSM

Pupil premium

Other DIEIESFA grants
Other govemment grants
Boarding activities

Other restricted funds
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE group capital grants
Private sector capital
sponsorship

Restricted endowment fund
Total restricted funds
Unrestricted funds

General funds

Total funds

Balance at Gains, Balance at

1 September losses and 31 August

2024 income Expenditure transfers 2025

£ £ £ £ £

1,338,657 34,928,924  (35,862,401) {405,180) -

- 70,099 (70,099) = -

- 1,671,204 (1,671,284) = =

- 2,898,850 (2.898,850) - -

- 2,341,863 (2,341,853) - -

- 86,010 {277,063} 191,053 -

- 256,311 {256,311) = =

- - 694,000 (694,000} =

1,338,657 42,253,351 (42,683,881) (908,127} -

55,366,772 1,665,567 (2,419,273) 214127 54,727,193

5,680,000 - - - 5,680,000

61,046,772 1,665,567 (2,419,273) 214,127 80,407,193

648,566 - - (266,000) 382,566

63,033,995 43,818,918  (45,103,154) (960,000) 60,789,759

1,403,811 1,121,003 (773,121) 266,000 2,017,693
64,437,806 44,939,921  {45,876,275) (694,000)

62,807,452
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Funds (Continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Restricted General Funds are those which are supplied for a specific duty and the funds may be spent only in
accordance with the agreement or restriclion placed upon each. Within the restdcted general funds is the
income and expenditure for the schoo! centred initial teacher training {SCITT) programme. The trust is an
accredited provider and receive funding from the Teaching Regulation Agency {TRA) in the forms of bursary
and salary grants. The scheme also receives money from students in the form of tuition fees.

Restricted Fixed Asset Funds are those assets which have been capifalised as a result of a donation from the
original school on conversion to a mulli academy or transfers from schools joining the trust and assets
purchased from one of the other funds since gaining academy status and transfemed.

Unrestricted funds are all other sources of income generated by the academy through frading or fundraising
and to which no restrictions apply regarding the way they are spent.

The endowment fund was provided to Wellington College Academy Trust prior 1o Iransferring into Ascend
Learning Trust {formerly Royal Wootion Bassett Academy Trust) to help fund the furthering of education in the
three schools which previously made up Wellington College Academy Trust.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2025.
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18 Funds

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Restricted general funds
General Arnual Grant (GAG)
UIFSM

Pupil premium

Cther DIE/ESFA grants
Olher government grants
Boarding acfivitias

Teaching School and SCITT
activities

Other restricted funds
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE group capital grants
Private sector capital
sponsorship

Restricted endowment fund

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds

General funds

Total funds

{Continued)

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2023 Income Expenditure transfers 2024

£ £ £ £ £
2,980,442 32,090,259 (32,886,703) (845,341) 1,338,657
- 81,240 (81,240) - .

138,993 1,605,153 (1,744,146) - -
26,908 2,404,550 (2431,458) - -

- 2,064,114 (2,064,114) - -

{185,984) 399,884 (537.,028) 323,128 -
224,625 503,511 (570,023) (158,113) =
24,396 272,409 (296,805) - -

= - 464,000 (464,000} -
3,209,380 39,421,120 (40,147.,517)  (1.144,326) 1,338,657
55,809,327 923,076 {2,210,872) 845,341 55,366,772
5,680,000 - - - 5,680,000
61,489,327 923,076 (2,210,972} 845,341 61,046,772
648,566 - - - 648,566
65,347,273 40,344,186  (42,358,489) (208,985) 63,033,995
1,450,368 1,389,550 (1,271,092} {165,015) 1,403,811
66,797,641 41,733,746  (43,629,581) (464,000) 64,437,808
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Funds
Total funds analysis by academy
Fund balances at 31 August 2025 were allocated as follows:

Kingsbury Green Academy

Royal Woolton Bassst Academy

Lawn Manor Academy

Ascend Learning Trust

Noremarsh Junior School

Ascend Learning Trust Enterprises Limited
The Wellington Academy

Wellington Lions Prmary Academy
Wellington Eagles Primary Academy

Total before fixed assets fund and pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset fund
Pension reserve

Total funds

(Continued)

2025 2024

£ £
2,400,259 3,381,034
2,400,259 3,391,034
60,407,123 61,046,772
62,807452 64,437,806

All reserves will be managed by the CQO and central finance team, and reviewed by the CEQ and Trust
Finance, Risk and Audit (FAR) commiitee on a regular basis. An appropriate range of options and
racommendations can be made to the Board for consideration regarding the releasing of funds into the
revenue budgets in furtherance of ALT's objectives, assigning funds to appropriate designated reserves as
may be determined by ALT, or investing the funds to generate further income to allow expansion of ALT's

work.
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18 Funds (Continued)
Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching and Other costs
educational Cther suppoirt  Educational excluding Total Total
sUpport staff staff costs supplies depreciation 2025 2024
£ £ £ £ £ £

Kingsbury Green Academy 5,202,085 996,798 669,438 821,948 7,690,270 7,011,520
Royal Woolton Basset

Academy 8,024,823 1,308,763  1,927.011 685,243 11,945840 11,495,544
Lawn Manor Academy 4,939,070 1,020,733 706,785 1,017,547 7,684,145 6,894.318
Ascend Learning Trust 936,268 1,615,352 121,630 796,465 3,469,715 3,018,792
Noremarsh Junior School 945,326 151,803 102,679 197,316 1,397,023 1,285,499
Ascend Learning Trust

Enterprises Limited - -

The Wellington Academy 5,544,872  1,193,79% 704,608 1,499,850 8,842829 8,787,923
Wellington Lions Primary

Academy 948,862 163,742 54,651 331,938 1,499,183 1,492,200
Wellington Eagles Primary
Academy 1,006,435 211,370 65,395 238,775 1,521,975 1,482,447

27,547,441 6,662,360 4,352,107 5,589,082 44,150,990 41,472,243

9 Analysis of net assets hetween funds

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Endowment Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds Funds
£ £ £ £ £
Fund balances at 31 August
2025 are represented by:
Tangible fixed assets - - 580991,245 - 58,091,245
Fixed asset investments - - 1 - 1
Current assets 2,567 468 3,523,888 1,415,047 382,566 7.889,869
Creditors falling due within one
year {549,775)  (3,523,888) - - (4,073,653)
Total net assefs 2,097,693 - 60,407,193 382,566 62,807,452
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20

Analysis of net assets hetween funds {Continued)
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Endowment Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds Funds
£ £ E £ £
Fund balances at 31 August
2024 are representad by:
Tangible fixed assels - - 60,423,842 - 60,423,842
Fixed asset investments - - 1 - 1
Current assets 1,403,811 6,116,997 622,929 648,566 8,792,303
Creditors fafling due within one
year - {(4,778,340) - - (4,778,340)

Total net assets 1,403,811 1,338,657 61,046,772 648,566 64,437,808

Pension and similar obligations

The Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Wiltshire Gouncil. Both are defined-benefit schemes.

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualiiied actuaries. The latest
actuatial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS 31 March 2022,

Contributions amounting to £728,322 (2024: £634,802) were payable 1o the schemes at 31 August 2025 and
are included within credilors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS) is & statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, govemned by the
Teachers’ Pension Bcheme Regulations 2014, Membership is automatic for teachers in academy irusts. Al
teachers have the option to opt out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS8 is an unfundad scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary. These confributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuaty, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published
by HM Treasury every 4 ysars. The aim of the review is to ensure scheme costs are recognised and managed
appropriately and the review specifies the level of future contributions.
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Pension and similar obligations {Continued)

Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits
and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2020. The
valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 27 Qclober 2023, with the SCAPE rate,
set by HMT, applying a notional investment return based on 1.7% above the rate of CPl. The key elements of
the valualion outcome are:

= Employer contribution rates set at 28.68% of pensionable pay {including a 0.08% administration lavy),
This is an increase of 5% In employer contributions and the cost control result is such that no change
in member benefits is needed.

* Total scheme labilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of fulure benefits) for
service o the effective date of £262,000 million and nolional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notlonal investments held at the valuation date) of £222,200 million, giving a
nolional past service deficit of £39,800 million.

The result of this valuation was implemented fram 1 April 2024.The next valuation resuit is due to be
implemented from 1 April 2027.

The pension costs paid to the TPS in the period amounted to £4,579,295 (2024: £3,788,499).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation 15 on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-emplover pension scheme. The
Academy Trust is unable to identify ifs share of the underlying assets and liahilities of the plan, Accordingly,
the Academy Trust has iaken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has has accounted for its
contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined coniribution scheme. The Academy Trust has set out above
the Information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme, with the assats held in separate trustee-administered funds.
The total contributions are as noted below. The agreed contribution rates during the year were 24.3% per cent
for employers and 5% - 12.5% for employees.

The sstimated value of employer confributions for the forthcoming year is £1,770,000 (2024: £1,538,000). The
academy trust has agreed tc pay the default contributions rates, no lump sum contrlbutions will be made for
the next few years, these fulure rates are as follows:

Perfod Employer Contribution
Rate

202412025 24.3%

20252026 24 3%

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, In the event
of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme fiabiliies would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the
Department for Education reaffrmed its commitment fo the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute published
on GOV.UK.

Total contributions made 2025 2024

E E
Employer’s contributions 1,744,000 1,840,000
Employees’ contributions 480,000 381,000
Total contributions 2,224 000 2,221,000
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Principal actuarial assumptiions

Rale of increase in salaries
Rale of increase for pensions in paymentfinflation
Discount rate for scheme liabilities

{Continued)

2025
%

3.00
2.50
6.00

2024
%

3.1%
2.65
5.00

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in morality rates. The

assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Reliring today

- Males

- Females

Retiring in 20 years
- Males

- Females

2025
Years

21.60
24.20

22,20
2540

Scheme liabifities would have been affected by changes in assumptions as follows:

Sensifivity Analysis
Change in assumptions af 31st August 2024

Approximate % increase

in employer liability
0.5% decrease in Real Discount Rate 10%
0.5% Increase in the Salary Increase Rate 0%
0.5% increase in the Pension Increase Rate 10%

Change in assumptions at 31st August 2025

Approximate % increase
in employer liability

0.5% decrease in Real Discount Rate 8.9%
0.5% increase in the Salary Increase Rale 143%
0.5% Increase in the Pension Increase Rate 7.7%

Approximate monetary
amount {£000})

2,635
105
2,590

Approximate monetary
arnount (£000})

2,048
328
1,782

2024
Years

21.10
24.50

21.60
25.60
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Defined benefit pension scheme net asset

Scheme assets
Scheme obiigations
Restriction of scheme assets - unrecoanised surplus

Net asset

The Academy Trust's share of the assets in the scheme

Equities
Bonds
Cash

Property

Total market value of assets

The aciual return on scheme assets was £1,802,000 (2024: £2,159,000).

Amount recognised in the statement of financlal activities

Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest income
Interest cost

Total operafing charge

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations

At 1 September 2024
Current service cost
Inferest cost

Employee contributions
Actuarial gain

Benefits paid

Past service cost

At 31 August 2025

(Continued)
2025 2024
£ £

33545000 28,000,000
(22,942,000) (25,070,000)
(10,603,000)  (2,930,000)

2425 2024
Fair value Fair value
£ £

13,824,000 12,320,280
11,306,000 8,506,860
1,215,000 1,466,700
7,100,000 7,040,160

33,545,000 29,334,000

2025 2024
£ £

{445,000) (605,000)
8,000 301,000

(1,527,000}  {1,361,000)
1,270,000 1,201,000

(694,000)  (464,000)

2025 2024
£ £

25,070,000 22,268,000
1,299,000 1,235,000
1,270,000 1,201,000

480,000 381,000

(5.407,000) (72.000)
222,000 (244,000)
8,000 301,000

22,942,000 25,070,000
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21

Pension and similar ohligations (Continued}
Changes in the fair value of the Academy Trust's share of scheme assets
2025 2024
£ £
At 1 September 2024 29,334,000 25,198,000
Interest income 1,527,000 1,361,000
Actuarial gain 275,000 798,000
Employer contributions 1,744,000 1,840,000
Employee confributions 480,000 381,000
Benefits paid 222,000 {244,000}
Effect of non-routine settlements and administration expenses {37,000) -
At 31 August 2025 33,545,000 29,334,000
Restriction of scheme assets (surplus not recognised) (10,603,000)  (2,930,000)
At 31 August 2025 22942000 26,404,000

At the balance sheet date the pension valuation estimated the pension was in a net asset position of
£10,603,000 (2024: £2,930,000), this asset has not baen recognised in the financial statements as the asset
does not meet the criteria to be recognised inline with FRS 102, The trust has no right fo a refund from the
pension as the assets belong to the members, and there is no certainty that the asset will lead to reduced
pension contribution rates in the fulure,

The Trustess are aware of the 2023 ruling in the Virgin Media vs NTL Pension Trustee case and subsequent
court of appeal ruling published in July 2024.

These ruled that certain amendments made to the NTL Pension Plan were invalid because they were not
accompanied by the correct actuarial confirmation.

There remains significant uncertainty as to whether the judgments will resuit in additional liabilities for UK
pension schemes and it is possible that the Department for Work and Pensions will infroducs [egislation to
allow changes to be cerlified retrospectively. A detailed review of historic documentation will be needed to
determine whether the changes made by the Schems were valid (assuming refrospective certification does
not become an option), and such a review will take some time to complete.

As a result, the Trustees cannot be certain of the potential implications (if any) and therefore a sufficlently
reliable estimate of any effect on the obligation cannot be made.

Analysis of changes in net funds
1 September  Cash flows 31 August

2024 2025
£ £ £
Cash 4,053,284 1,452,672 5,905,956
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Long-term commitments

Operating leases

At 31 August 2025 the total of the Academy Trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases was:

2025 2024

£ £

Amounts due within one year 1,526,788 1,722,816
Amounts due in two and five years 6,403,239 7,068,778
Amounts due after five years 3,387,938 5,788,039

11,317,965 14,579,631

Royal Woolton Bassett Academy occupies premises which are subject to a private finance initiative (PFI)
confract. The trust itself is not parly to this service concession contract, however the academy trust has
entered into a supporting agreement towards the cost of the local authority. The above related to
commitments {o operating payments including costs for catering, cleaning, utilities and other ancillary
services,

The contract has a further 7 years fo run. The commitment is an estimate of the future costs and is based on a
budget prepared by the Trust which assumes a short term increase in year 2026/27 of 2.5% based on the RPI
experienced in the previous year and an increase of 2.5%to 3% going forward for the remaining estimate. The
trust have based the estimate on stident numbers remaining consistent. The PFI charge each year is variable
each year as the charge calculation is based on annual variations in funding, pupil numbers and RPI.

23 Recongciliation of net expenditure o net cash flow from operating activities
2025 2024
£ £

Net expenditure for the reporting period (as per the statement of financial
activities) (236,354}  (1,895,835)
Adjusted for:
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (1.565,567) (923,076)
investment income recelvable (57.271) (23.093)
Defined bencfit pension costs less confributions payable (437,000) (304,000)
Defined benefit pension scheme finance income (257.000) (160,000)
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 2,398,494 2,198,280
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 20,779 12,692
Dacreasel(increase) in debfors 2,355,105 {451,982)
{Decrease) In creditors (704,677) (557,857)
Net cash provided by/{used in) cperating activifies 816,509 (2,104 871)
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25

Capital commitments

2025 2024
3 £

Expenditure coniracted for but nct provided in the financial statements 1,130,034 471,749

The capital commitments relate to contracts entered Inlo as at 31 August 2025 in relation to remaining SCA
projects and roof repairs. £832,318 will be funded by SCA funded which is being carried forward as unspent
capital funds as at 31 August 2025.

Related party transactions

Owing fo the nature of the academy ftrust and the composition of the board of directors being drawn from local
public and private secior organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the directors
have an interest. The following related party {ransactions took place in the financial period.

Income and expenditure related transactions

During the year the Trust paid £Nil (2024: £150) to Backdrop Education services Limited for educational
consultancy services. Jonathan Gibson a Trustee Is a Director of Backdrop Education Services Limited.

During the year the Trust paid £8,893 (2024: £20,363) to Education Business Parinership West Berkshire
Lirited for supported work experience programs. Jane Coley, CEQ, is a Director of Education Business
Parinership West Berkshire Limited, The CEO, Kate Barrow, of Education Business Parinership is also a
trustee of Ascend Learning Trust

During the period £32,961 (2024: £Nif) was paid 1o Mitchells Digital media, a company in which a relation of
one of the members is the operations manager.

A Barrow, a frustee and spouse of K Barrow another trustee, is employed by the academy trust as Head of
Legat and Procurement and was previcusly employed as matemnity cover in the HR department eardier in the
year. The appoiniment as Head of Legal and Procurement was made in open competition and K Barrow was
not involved in the decision-making process regarding appoiniment. The temporary maternity cover contract
however was not made at open competition, see Accounting Officer’s regularity statement, A Bammow is paid
within the normal pay scale for his role and receives no special freatment as a result of his relationship to a
trustee and acting as a frusiee.

Trading subsidiary

Ascend Leaming Trust Enterprise Limited {formerly known as RWBAT Enterprise Ltd) (Co. No. 07336441} is a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Trust by virtue of Ascend Learning Trust being the sole owner of the entire 1
£1 Ordinary share in Ascend Learning Trust Enterprise Limited. Its principal activities was that of hire of
facilities, operation of a leisure cenire, nursery activities and provision of catering services extemally to other
schools. The Registered office of Ascend Learning Trust Enterprise Limited is The Hive Clarendon Drive,
Royal Wootton Bassett, Swindon, England, SN4 8BT.

During the year, Ascend Learning Trust Enterprise Limited were recharged from the Academy Trust £nil {2024:
£136,976) expenditure incurred on their behalf, £nil (2024: £124,978) related to the recharged of staffing
expenses and £nil (2024: £12,000) related to the hire of the buildings recognised within the trust.

As at 31 August 2025 there was £nil (2024: £31,844} owing fo the Academy Trust.
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28

Members' liabitity

Each member of the charilable company undertakes fo contribute to the assets of the company in the event of
it being wound up while he or she is a member, or within one year after he or she ceases o be a member,
stich amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he or she
ceases to be a member.

Agency arrangements

The academy trust distibutes 16-19 bursary funds fo students as an agent for the ESFA. In the accounting
period ending 31 August 2025 the trust brought forward £63,653 (2024: £48,532, received £28,543 {2024:
£31,249) and disbursed £55,724 (2024: £18,224) from the fund. The trust has included £33,685 (2024:
£63,653) within deferred income as at the year end.

The academy trust distributes SCITT bursary funds to student teachers as an agent for TRA. During the
accounting period ending 31 August 2025 the trust brought forward a debtor of £7,400 (2024: £7,400),
received £7,400 (2024: £89,700), disbursed Enil (2023: £89,700) and carried forward a debtor of £nil (2024
£7.400).

Boarding activities trading account

2025 2024
£ £ £ £
Direct income
Other direct income 86,010 309,884
Direet costs
Direct staff costs 105,200 104,369
Other direct cosis 96,649 5,183
Technology costs 186 11,871
Educational supplies and services - 275
202,035 121,698
Other costs
Support staff costs 63,870 142,469
Maintenance of premises and equipment 8,155 47,786
Cleaning - 82,259
Transport 3,895 7,291
Catering 765 113,380
Other support costs {1.757) 22,145
75,028 415,330
Total expenditure {277,063} (537,028)
Transfers between funds excluding depreciation 191,063 323,128
Surplus from all sources - 185,984
Boarding activittes balances at 1 September 2024 - (185,984)

Boarding activities balances at 31 August 2025
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